Wistron Corporation

Rules and Procedures of Shareholders' Meeting

- Article 1. The Shareholders' Meeting (the "Meeting") of Wistron Corporation ("Wistron"), except as otherwise provided by law, regulation, or the articles of incorporation, shall be conducted in accordance with these Rules and Procedures.
- Article 2. The Company shall be set forth in the meeting notice the shareholder sign-in time, location of the meeting and other precautions.

The shareholder sign-in time should be at least thirty minutes prior to the start of the meeting; the reception post should be clearly marked and adequately qualified personnel sent to handle the sign-in. Shareholders attending the Meeting via video conferencing should report on the video conferencing platform thirty minutes prior to the commencement of the Meeting. On completion of reporting a shareholder will be deemed as in attendance.

Shareholders attending the Meeting shall sign in. The sign-in procedure is performed by submitting an attendance card. The number of shares represented by attending shareholders shall be calculated in accordance with the attendance card submitted by shareholders or by the number of shares reported on the video conferencing platform. The shares of shareholders exercising voting rights in written form or by electronic means shall also be included.

Shareholders or their proxies (hereinafter referred to as "shareholders") with an attendance card shall be allowed to attend the Meeting; registered proxy solicitors shall also bring identification documents for verification.

If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by video conference, shareholders and solicitors who wish to attend via video shall register with Wistron two days prior to the Meeting.

If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by video conference, Wistron shall prepare electronic versions of the shareholders' meeting agenda, the annual report, and other supplemental meeting materials and upload them to the video conferencing platform. Such materials shall remain disclosed until the end of the Meeting.

- Article 3. The presence of shareholders at the Meeting and their voting at the Meeting shall be calculated in accordance with the number of shares.
- Article 4. The Meeting shall be held at the domicile of Wistron or at any other appropriate place that is convenient for the presence of shareholders. The time to start the Meeting shall not be earlier than 9:00 a.m. or later than 3:00 p.m.

When the Company convenes the Meeting via video conferencing, the previous paragraph with regards to meeting location does not apply.

Article 5. If the Meeting is called by the Board of Directors ("BOD"), the Board's Chairman shall preside at the Meeting. In case the Chairman is on leave of absence, or cannot exercise his powers and authority, the Vice Chairman shall act in his place. If there is no Vice Chairman, or the Vice Chairman is also on leave of absence, or cannot exercise his powers and authority, the Chairman shall designate a director to act in his place. If the Chairman does not designate a director, the directors shall elect one from among

themselves to act in lieu of the Chairman. The director acting as Chairman of the Meeting shall have held office for more than six months and understand the financial and business conditions of the Company, likewise if the acting Chairman is a representative of a juristic person. If the Meeting is called by any person other than the BOD, who has the right to call the Meeting, said person shall preside at that Meeting.

- Article 6. Wistron may appoint designated counsel, CPA or other related persons to attend the Meeting.
- Article 7. The Company shall record the proceedings of the Meeting entirely in audio or video from the shareholders' sign-in through the meeting discussions and the vote counting process; this recording shall be continuous and uninterrupted and the Company shall retain the recording for at least one year. However, if a shareholder lawsuit has been instituted in accordance with Article 189 of the Company Act, the proceedings of the meeting shall be preserved by the Company until the legal proceedings of the lawsuit have been concluded.

If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by video conference, the Company shall keep records of all shareholder registration, reporting, questions proposed, voting and ballot totals.

In addition, continuous video and audio recordings of the video conference shall be made, stored for the duration of Wistron's operations, and shall be given to the video conferencing organizer for safekeeping.

If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by video conference, the Company shall record the background operation interface of the video conferencing platform.

- Article 8. The Chairman shall call the Meeting to order at the time scheduled for the Meeting and announce the relevant information such as the number of non-voting rights and the number of shares present, provided, however, that if the shareholders present do not represent a majority of the total number of issued shares ("quorum"), the Chairman may postpone the Meeting, provided, however, that the postponement of the Meeting shall be limited to two times, and the total time of the overall postponement shall not exceed one hour. If the Meeting has been postponed twice, but the shareholders present still do not represent a quorum, a tentative resolution may be adopted by shareholders representing one-third of the total amount of issued shares, in accordance with Paragraph 1 of Article 175 of the Company Act. Before the close of the Meeting, if the shareholders present represent a quorum, the Chairman may present the tentative resolution so adopted to the Meeting for resolution in accordance with the provisions of Article 174 of the Company Act.
- Article 9. If the Meeting is convened by the BOD, the agenda of the Meeting shall be set by the BOD. Unless otherwise resolved at the Meeting, the Meeting shall proceed in accordance with the agenda. During the Meeting, the Chairman may, at his/her discretion, set time for intermission. Unless otherwise resolved at the Meeting, the Chairman may not announce adjournment of the Meeting before the Meeting is finished. If the Chairman announces the adjournment in violation of these Rules and Procedures, the shareholders may, by majority of the votes represented by the shareholder present at the Meeting, designate one person as the Chairman to continue the Meeting.
- Article 10. A shareholder wishing to speak at the Meeting shall first fill out a slip, specifying therein the major points of his speech, his serial number as a shareholder and his name, and the Chairman shall determine his order of giving a speech. A shareholder who submits his

slip for a speech but does not actually speak shall be considered as not having given a speech. If the contents of his speech shall be different from those specified on the slip, the contents of his speech shall prevail. When a shareholder is giving a speech, the other shareholders shall not interrupt unless they have obtained the prior consent from the Chairman and the said shareholder, and the Chairman shall prevent others from interrupting.

Article 11. A shareholder shall not speak more than two times for one motion, unless he has obtained the prior consent from the Chairman, and each speech shall not exceed 5 minutes. If a shareholder violates the above provisions or his speech exceeds the scope of the motion, the Chairman may prevent him from continuing.

If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by video conference, shareholders attending via a video link may, after the Chairman announces the commencement of the Meeting and before the Meeting is adjourned, submit questions in text format via the video conference platform. No more than two questions may be submitted for each discussion item. Each question should be limited to 200 words. The regulations in Paragraph 1 do not apply.

If the question referred to in the previous paragraph is not in violation of any regulations or is not beyond the scope of the discussion item, the question should be disclosed to the public on the video conferencing platform.

- Article 12. Any legal entity designated as proxy by shareholder(s) to be present at the Meeting may appoint only one representative to attend the Meeting. If a corporate shareholder designates two or more representatives to attend the Meeting, only one of the representatives so designated may speak on any one motion.
- Article 13. After a shareholder has given a speech, the Chairman may respond personally or designate a relevant person to respond.
- Article 14. The chair shall allow ample opportunity during the meeting for explanation and discussion of proposals and of amendments or extraordinary motions put forward by the shareholders; When the Chairman considers that the discussion for a motion has reached the extent for making a resolution, he may announce discontinuance of the discussion and submit the motion for resolution and arrange adequate voting time.
- Article 15. The persons for supervising the casting of votes and the counting thereof for resolutions shall be designated by the Chairman, provided, however, that the person supervising the casting of votes shall be a shareholder. Voting counting or election ballots shall be conducted in public at the place of the Shareholders' Meeting. After the completion of the vote count, the voting results shall be announced on the spot, including the shares voted by Shareholders and recorded in the meeting minutes.

In addition, in the case of the election of directors and independent directors, the Company shall announce the election results, including the number of directors elected and the number of ballots received by each and the list of unelected directors and the number of voting rights obtained. The ballots for the election shall be sealed with the signatures of the monitoring personnel and kept in proper custody for at least 1 year.

Article 16. A shareholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share held, except when the shares are restricted shares or are deemed non-voting shares under Article 179, paragraph 2 of the Company Act.

When the Company holds a shareholders' meeting, it shall adopt exercise of voting rights by electronic means and may adopt exercise of voting rights by correspondence. When voting rights are exercised by correspondence or electronic means, the method of exercise shall be specified in the shareholders meeting notice. A shareholder exercising voting rights by correspondence or electronic means will be deemed to have attended the meeting in person, but to have waived his/her rights with respect to the extraordinary motions and amendments to original proposals of that meeting.

A shareholder intending to exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic means under the preceding paragraph shall deliver a written declaration of intent to this Corporation before 2 days before the date of the shareholders meeting. When duplicate declarations of intent are delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail, except when a declaration is made to cancel the earlier declaration of intent.

After a shareholder has exercised voting rights by correspondence or electronic means, in the event the shareholder intends to attend the shareholders meeting in person or via video conferencing, a written declaration of intent to retract the voting rights already exercised under the preceding paragraph shall be made known to this Corporation, by the same means by which the voting rights were exercised, before 2 business days before the date of the shareholders meeting. If the notice of retraction is submitted after that time, the voting rights already exercised by correspondence or electronic means shall prevail. When a shareholder has exercised voting rights both by correspondence or electronic means and by appointing a proxy to attend a shareholders meeting, the voting rights exercised by the proxy in the meeting shall prevail.

Except otherwise specified in the Company Act or the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, a resolution shall be adopted by a majority of the votes represented by the shareholders present at the Meeting. At the time of a vote, the chairman or a person designated by the chairman shall first announce the total number of voting rights represented by the attending shareholders, followed by a poll of the shareholders.

If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by video conference, after the Chairman announces the end of a poll, the votes shall be counted, followed by the declaration of poll and/or election results.

When the Company adopts video conferencing as an aid to the holding of a Shareholders' Meeting, shareholders and solicitors who have already registered to attend via a video link, in accordance with Article 2, but that then wish to attend in person, shall cancel their registration two days prior to the Meeting. Anyone who fails to do so will be seen as attending via video link.

Shareholders exercising voting rights in written form or by electronic means without revoking their expression of intent and who attend the Meeting via a video link may not, with the exception of extraordinary motions, re-exercise voting rights on any discussion item or amend votes on any original discussion item.

Article 17. If there is an amendment to or substitute for a discussion item, the Chairman shall decide the sequence of voting for such discussion item and the amendment or substitute. If any one of them has been adopted, the others shall be deemed vetoed and no further voting is necessary. Article 18. The Chairman may direct disciplinary personnel (or security personnel) to maintain the order of the Meeting. For doing so they shall wear a badge bearing the words of "disciplinary personnel."

At the place of a shareholders meeting, if a shareholder attempts to speak through any device other than the public address equipment set up by this Corporation, the chair may prevent the shareholder from so doing.

When a shareholder violates the rules of procedure and defies the chair's correction, obstructing the proceedings and refusing to heed calls to stop, the chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to escort the shareholder from the meeting.

- Article 19. In case of incident of force majeure, the Chairman may decide to temporarily suspend the Meeting and announce, depending on the situation, when the Meeting will be resumed, or may, by resolution of shareholders present at the Meeting, resume the Meeting within five days without further notice or public announcement.
- Article 20. If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by video conference, the Company shall compile in both printed and electronic format a statistical statement of the number of shares obtained by solicitors through solicitation and the number of shares represented by proxies, and shall make an express disclosure of the same on the video conferencing platform until the end of the Meeting.

When the Shareholders' Meeting is held via video conference, the Chairman and the meeting minutes recorder shall be in the same place. The chairman shall announce the address of the meeting location at the time of the Meeting, and disclose the number of shares represented by the shareholders present on the video conference platform. The same applies if the number of shares represented by the shareholders present is also counted during the Meeting.

If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by video conference, the Company shall immediately disclose the voting results and election results of each resolution on the video conference platform of the Shareholders' Meeting in accordance with regulations, and shall continue to disclose such information for at least fifteen minutes after the Chairman announces the adjournment of the Meeting.

If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by video conference, the meeting minutes recorder shall record the start and end time of the Meeting, the method by which the Meeting is convened, and the names of the Chairman and the recorder, in addition to matters to be recorded in accordance with the regulations.

Article 21. This Procedure was enacted on June 7, 2002.

The 1st amendment was made on June 21, 2012.

The 2nd amendment was made on June 14, 2013.

The 3rd amendment was made on June 18, 2020.

The 4th amendment was made on July 20, 2021.

The 5th amendment was made on June 17, 2022.